
 

 

 

 

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Tuesday, 16th March, 2021 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 
 

Remote Meeting 

 
 



2 

ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Due to the current Covid-19 pandemic Worcester City Council will be holding this meeting in 

accordance with the relevant legislative arrangements for remote meetings of a local authority. For 

more information please refer to: Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 

(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 

2020. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting, conducting remotely by videoconferencing between invited 

participants and live streamed for general access by audio via the Council’s website. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You can listen to a live audio stream of the 

meeting via the City Council website www.worcester.gov.uk/councillors-democracy. You have the right 

to inspect electronic copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background 

documents used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the 

foot of each report. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for 

which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor 

background papers are open to public inspection. 

 

Members of the public and press are permitted to report on the proceedings. "Reporting" in the context 

of this remote meeting includes making an audio recording of the live streamed audio and providing 

commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the proceedings, 

including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda. Participation in remote meetings will extend to video and/or audio participation or written 

submission read aloud at the appropriate point in the meeting by the Chairman. Participants need to 

indicate that they wish to take part in a remote meeting by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day before 

the meeting by telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. A Democratic Services Officer will 

then contact to advise how to participate in the remote meeting, by invitation. Requests to participate 

received later than this cut-off time may not be accommodated. 

 

If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council, he/she will be deemed to 

have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the Council’s website. The 

Chairman of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if in their opinion, 

continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider that continued 

recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

If you have any queries about this Agenda, require any details of background papers, or wish to 

discuss the arrangements for public participation please contact Margaret Johnson, Democratic 

Services Administrator, Democratic Services, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY  Telephone: 01905 722085 

(direct line).  E-Mail Address: committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages. Please contact the above-named officer for further information. 

 

 



3 

Environment Committee 
Tuesday, 16 March 2021 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chairman: Councillor Joy Squires (L) 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Andy Stafford (C) 

 
Councillor Mel Allcott (LD) 

Councillor Mohammad Altaf (C) 
Councillor Bill Amos (C) 
Councillor Tracey Biggs (L) 

Councillor Tom Collins (L) 
 

Councillor Louise Griffiths (C) 

Councillor Neil Laurenson (G) 
Councillor Andrew Roberts (C) 
Councillor Ceri Marie Stalker (L) 

Councillor Richard Udall (L) 
 

 

  
C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  

LD = Liberal Democrat 

 
AGENDA 

 

Part 1 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 
1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a 

Member of the Committee. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 

maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the 

Committee. 
 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 6 

 Of the meeting held on 26th January 2021 to be approved and signed. 
 

5. Proposed Committee Performance Scorecard 2021/22  

Page(s): 7 - 12 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Joanna Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer 
Tel: 01905 722407 

 That the Environment Committee consider the proposed content of the 

Environment Performance Scorecard for 2020/21. 
 



4 

 
6. Action Plan for the First Phase of Delivery of the Environmental 

Sustainability Strategy  
Page(s): 13 - 24 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Ruth Corrall, Environmental Sustainability Officer 
Tel: 01905 722364 

 

 1. That the Committee approves the proposed Action Plan for 2021-22 to 

deliver the adopted Environmental Sustainability Strategy 2020-2030; and 
 

2. That the Committee delegates authority to the Chair and Vice Chair to 

approve any amendments to the Action Plan that due to urgency may not be 
able to be brought to this Committee.  

7. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration. 
 



ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 
26th January 2021 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Joy Squires in the Chair 

 Councillors Allcott, Altaf, Biggs, Collins, 
Griffiths, Laurenson, Roberts, Stafford 

(Vice-Chairman), Stalker and Udall 
    

Officers: Shane Flynn, Corporate Director – Finance 

and        Resources 
 Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director – Homes 

and Communities 
 Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance 
 Sue Horrobin, Head of Environmental 

Operations 
 Tim Allen, Environmental Operations 

Project Manager 
 
 

23 Appointment of Substitutes  
 

None. 
 

24 Declarations of Interest  

 
None. 

 
25 Public Participation  

 

Paul Snookes, representative of Worcester Environmental Group (WEG), 
addressed the Committee on several issues relating to biodiversity.  The 

Committee were asked to consider the need for a wildlife ranger to be re-
employed to enhance biodiversity for the benefit of the residents of Worcester.  
He also indicated that money could be saved, CO2 reduced and biodiversity 

enhanced by adopting a cut and collect regime on verges and grasslands in 
Worcester. 

 
The Chair gave thanks to Paul Snookes for his contribution to the meeting. 

 
26 Minutes  

 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 27th October 2020 be 
approved as a correct record and signed remotely by the Chairman. 

 
Matters Arising: 
 

Minute 18 – Allotments Review  
 

The Chair asked Officers to update on the progress of the Task and Finish Group 
set up for the review.  The Head of Operational Services reported that Officers 
had been working with the Task and Finish Group to seek an organisation to 

undertake the review.  It was hoped that the group would be in a position shortly 
to inform the Forum Members and Allotment Holders.  

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 26th January 2021 2 

 
 

Minute 22 – Any Other Business – Lyme Disease 

 
Members were informed that Worcestershire County Council had now agreed that 

Worcester Countryside Centre would be promoting signage and working with 
Lyme Disease UK to establish communication and education awareness. It was 
considered that this would be an opportunity for the City to co-ordinate with the 

Countryside Service to provide information to residents using the Countryside 
Centre and the Nature Reserves in the City to educate and create awareness of 

the issues and dangers Lyme Disease.   It was hoped that a report would come 
before the next Committee, if possible, to consider what action could be taken.  
The Chair agreed that this was an opportunity for the City to join with the 

Countryside Centre to provide a co-ordinated approach.  
 

27 Capital Investment Programme - Public Bins  
 
The Committee considered a report on a Capital Investment Programme for Public 

Bins.  The Environmental Operations Project Manager presented the report in 
conjunction with a powerpoint presentation. 

 
The Council has been reviewing the way it manages and delivers the City’s Street 
Scene Services.  ‘Clean Streets’ was identified as a key work stream in the 

Council’s Transformation programme.  The scope covers all services which have 
an impact on local environmental quality including the provision of litter and 

recycling bins in public locations. 
 

Details of the current public bin provision was provided at paragraph 3 of the 
report, appendix 1 attached to the report provided examples of current bin styles, 
appendix 2 provided examples of newer bin styles.  In order to set a clear 

direction for the provision of public litter and recycling bins, a set of principles for 
the investment programme had been set.  By following these principles it is 

expected that benefits would be realised whilst ensuring the City has a modern, 
attractive and sufficient number of public bins. 
 

The preferred options for the bins were highlighted at paragraph 5.1 of the report.  
Alternative options had been considered.  Officers responded to questions from 

Members. 
 
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the recommendations within the report 

and in particular 1.3.  The Chair asked the Corporate Director – Finance and 
Resources to clarify the recommendation from a constitutional aspect. 

 
The Corporate Director – Finance and Resources clarified the understanding of the 
difference of how normally monies are allocated for projects and how the capital 

programme is built.  He stated that there is no reason why the report could not go 
to Council, but as it stands there is no business case.  He suggested at this stage, 

that as part of the budget process, to proceed with recommendation 1.2 then 
proceed to Council. 
 

The Corporate Director – Homes and Communities on the advice of the Corporate 
Director – Finance and Resources clarified the recommendations in the report to 

be amended as follows 
 
1.1 To remain as is 

Page 2



 26th January 2021 3 

 
 

1.2 Wording after 2024/2025 to be deleted 

1.3 To be deleted and replaced with 
 

note that a further report will be brought to this Committee during 2021 that will 
present ward level action plans, together with associated planned capital 
expenditure. 

 
Members asked that the amendments to the recommendations be circulated to 

them for clarity. 
 
It was agreed that the recommendations, as amended, be approved. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee: 

 
1. note the contents of this report and the challenges associated with 

the condition, mix and location of a proportion of the existing public 

bin infrastructure; 
  

2. instructs officers to work with the Chair and Vice Chair of 
Environment Committee, Ward Members and key stakeholders in 
each Ward to identify appropriate styles and locations of litter and 

recycling bins in order to produce ward level action plans for 
implementation between 2021/2022 – 2024/2025; and 

 
3. note that a further report will be brought to this Committee during 

2021 that will present ward level action plans, together with 
associated planned capital expenditure. 

 

28 Setting of the Budget for 2021/22 and the MTPF to 2025/26  
 

The Committee considered the proposed budgets for Environment Services for 
2021/22.  The Committee reviewed the priorities within each service and the 
initiatives proposed in the Income and Efficiency plan, and reviewed the City Plan 

allocations.  The Committee also considered the draft Capital Programme to 
2024/25. 

 
The Corporate Director – Finance and Resources presented the report and the 
Head of Finance commented on the detailed aspects of the appendices (1-3).  

Officers responded to questions from Members. 
 

During the debate Members considered budget proposals to recommend to Policy 
and Resources Committee. The following proposal for consideration was made: 
 

Gull Control –  It was proposed to allocate additional funding of £7,500 for 
additional activities to improve the control of gull numbers in the City Centre, 

building on the programme of activities already agreed by the Committee in 
October 2020.  This additional funding would look at nest and egg removal, where 
there is no internal access and the trial of red roof surfaces as a deterrent to 

nesting gulls at properties in Brook Street and Fish Street.  The proposal was 
seconded and upon being put to the vote was agreed. 

 

Page 3



 26th January 2021 4 

 
 

The Committee proceeded to consider the proposed budgets for Environment 

Services for 2021/22. The Committee did not recommend any change for the 
services’ Budgets or the Income and Efficiency plans. The Committee supported 

the Capital Programme and future projects and did not recommend any changes 
or additions.   
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee: 
 

1. note the proposed Budgets for the various services identified for 
2021/22; 
 

2. note the priorities within each service; 
 

3. note the services’ Capital Programme and future projects; and 
 

4. recommend the Policy and Resources Committee to agree the 

following new budget proposal: 
 

 Gull Control, additional activity - £7,500 
 

29 Quarter 3 Performance Report 2020/21  

 
The Committee considered the Quarter 3 Performance for the Environment 

Committee for 2020/21, attached as Appendix 1 to the report. 
 

The Corporate Director – Finance and Resources presented the report and advised 
that there was detailed commentary on the status of each of the projects and 
performance indicators in the appendix. 

 
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Street Scene PI for quality, which 

was being reported for the first time using the new standards approved by the 
Committee in July 2020.  The Head of Environmental Operations indicated that 
the percentage figure given should read 97% and not 71%.  An explanation was 

provided on the grading structure to reach the percentage figure.  Officers agreed 
that some of the information provided and PI descriptions needed to be clearer. 

 
The Chair asked that this information be amended, the report re-issued and 
circulated to all Members for clarity. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Committee note the Council’s Quarter 3 performance 

for 2020/21. 
 

30 Any Other Business  

 
Cripplegate Park 

 
Members were informed that 19th June 2022 will see the 100th Anniversary of the 
opening of Cripplegate Park by Mayor, Samuel Southall.  It was asked whether the 

Committee would consider marking this occasion and requested that a report be 
brought back to a future Committee meeting.  The Chair, in response, stated that 

consideration would be given to celebrate this Centenary. 
 

Page 4



 26th January 2021 5 

 
 

Sue Horrobin 

 
Members were informed that Sue Horrobin, Head of Environmental Operations, 

would be leaving the City Council this week and taking up a strategic post at 
Worcestershire County Council Waste Management.  The Chair on behalf of the 
Committee thanked Sue for all her hard work in bringing about the transformation 

of Environmental Operations which had seen some huge changes. 
 

 
 
Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. to 8.25p.m. 

 
 

 
Chair at the meeting on 

16th March 2021 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 16th March 2021 
 

Report of: Corporate Director – Home and Communities 
 

 
Subject: PROPOSED COMMITTEE PERFORMANCE SCORECARD FOR 2021/22 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Environment Committee consider the proposed content of the 
Environment Performance Scorecard for 2020/21. 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 The City Council’s Performance Scorecards provide a one page overview of priority 

activities and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for each committee. These are 

supported by more detailed reports providing brief narrative updates for projects and 
activities and a visual representation of PIs in the form of run graphs or charts as 

applicable.  These are reported to Committees on a quarterly basis. 
 

2.2 The content of the Performance Scorecards for Environment Committee has been 

reviewed by the senior management team and committee chair and vice chair as 
part of the Council’s service planning processes for 2021/22 to ensure that it remains 

relevant and continue to reflect ‘what matters most’ under the functions of the 
committee. 
 

2.3 The current key projects and activities have been refreshed, taking account of the 
completion of current projects and the commencement of new activities. 

2.4 Performance indicators (PIs) have been reviewed and alternative options proposed 
where these are deemed more appropriate measures of progress against the 
Council’s priorities. 

2.5 Proposed targets have been developed based on a principle of performance 
improvement where this is realistic. 

3. Information  
 
3.1 The proposed content of the Environment Committee Performance Scorecard for 

2021/22 is attached as Appendix 1 which includes details of 2020/21 scorecard 
content which will be removed. 

 
Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer:  Jo Payne, Corporate Policy & Strategy Officer 

    Tel: 01905 722407 
   Email: joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk  

Background Papers: None 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5

mailto:joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Proposed Scorecard Content 2021/22 

Appendix 1 
Environment Committee  
Proposed Scorecard Content 2021/22   
 

Projects and Activities 

Bereavement Services Facilities Review  

Perdiswell landscaping Phase 2 – Perdiswell Park  

Riverside Park improvements to maintain and enhance Green Flag  

A programme of environmental and sustainability communications and campaigns to 

promote awareness 

Develop an action plan to tackle Ash Dieback and increase trees across the City  

Improve arterial routes  

New for 2021/22 

Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme  

Environmental Sustainability Action Plan 

Allotments Review 

Strategic Play Area Development Plan 

Public Bin Investment Programme 

Removed Reason for removal 

Environmental Sustainability Strategy Complete 

Drinking water fountains within the City Centre Complete 

Street Scene Transformation (Clean Streets) Complete 

Delivery of Task & Finish Recommendations on Air 
Quality 

Responsibility of L&EH 
Committee 

Development of Taxi Strategy for the City  Responsibility of L&EH 

Committee / Need for strategy 
under review 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



 

Proposed Scorecard Content 2021/22 

Key PIs 20/21 

Target 

21/22 

Target 

Target Rationale/Comments 

Environmental Fixed Penalty Notices Issued 50/month 50/month No obvious rationale to change targets given 
previous years periods of lockdown impacting 

numbers issued.  

% of household waste recycled and composted  37% 38% Maintenance targets. 
 

Composted target reflects increased number of 
customers. 
Residual and total waste targets (kg per household) 

are based on the pandemic still affecting Q1 and Q2 
but then returning to a new normal in Q3 and Q4. 

Previous results show that waste generation has 
increased in the domestic environment as people 
have been at home during the lockdowns. Future 

results are expected to be higher (worse) then 
originally predicted as working from home may still 

be a way of life. 

Household waste recycled  31% 31% 

Household waste composted  6% 7% 

Residual household waste collected per 
household (kg) 

436 457 

Total amount of household waste collected per 

household (kg) 

694 714 

% of incidents of street litter and animal fouling 
cleared within agreed response time of 2 

working days. 

New Collection of 
these PIs 

commenced 
in Q3 

2020/21 so 

further 
baseline 

data to be 
collected to 

enable 

target 
setting 

against the 
new 

standards 

Previously combined as one PI but separated due to 
mixed response times for different elements.  

 
Response times amended from 14 days in line with 
new Street Scene working practices. 

% of incidents of street detritus and weeds 
cleared within agreed response time of 5 
working days. 

% of incidents of poor grass maintenance 

cleared within agreed response time of 5 
working days 

Response times amended from 14 days in line with 

new Street Scene working practices. 

% of incidents of overflowing litter / dog waste 

bins dealt with within agreed response time of 
1 calendar day 

% of incidents of fly-tipping cleared within 

agreed response time of 2 working days 

P
age 10



 

Proposed Scorecard Content 2021/22 

% of streets assessed as Excellent or 
Acceptable across all five Street Scene Places. 

and revised 
response 

times. 

Amended from ‘% of streets assessed as Excellent or 
Acceptable’ to clarity scope. This PI to include North, 

South, East & West ‘Places’ and the City Centre 
‘Place’.   

Annual Indicators 20/21 

Target 

21/22 

Target 

 

Satisfaction with street cleansing 63% 67% Maintenance targets based on results of 2020 
Annual Survey. Satisfaction with rubbish collection and 

recycling 
84% 87% 

Satisfaction with parks and play areas 79% 72% 

Carbon emissions 1450t 1420t Long-term target to be carbon neutral by 2030.  

New for 2021/22   Rationale / Comments 

No. of street scene assessments observed 
across City Centre Place by grade. 
A) Excellent  

B) Acceptable 
C) Poor 

D) Unacceptable/Hazardous 

 Baseline 
data 
collection 

To provide greater clarity of cleanliness assessments 
across the City. Proposed that City Centre is 
measured separately from other ‘Places’ as it has 

different service standards. 
 

No. of street scene assessments observed 
across the four main Places by grade.  
A) Excellent  

B) Acceptable 
C) Poor 

D) Unacceptable/Hazardous 

 To provide greater clarity of cleanliness assessments 
across the City. This PI to include North, South, East 
& West ‘Places’.   

Removed  Reason for removal 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 
acceptable levels of detritus 

Replaced in Q3 2020/21 by more appropriate measures for Place Working as 
above. 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 

acceptable levels of litter 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 
acceptable levels of grass cutting 

P
age 11



 

Proposed Scorecard Content 2021/22 

 

Street Scene Service - % of areas with 
acceptable levels of hedge maintenance 

WRS - requests resolved to customers’ 

satisfaction  

These indicators are reported to WRS Board on a quarterly basis at which 2 x 

Worcester City Council Members attend and is the key location for scrutiny of 
WRS performance 

% of food premises with 3+ food hygiene 

rating  

As above 

% of drivers licence renewal within 5 working 
days 

As above 

P
age 12



 

 
 

Report to: Environment Committee, 16th March 2021 
 

Report of: Deputy Director – Corporate Policy and Strategy 
 

 
Subject: ACTION PLAN FOR THE FIRST PHASE OF DELIVERY OF THE 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY 
 
1. Recommendation 

 
1.1 That the Committee approves the proposed Action Plan for 2021-22 to 

deliver the adopted Environmental Sustainability Strategy 2020-2030. 
 

1.2 That the Committee delegates authority to the Chair and Vice Chair to 
approve any amendments to the Action Plan that due to urgency may not be 
able to be brought to this Committee.  

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Environmental Sustainability Strategy for the City of Worcester 2020-2030 was 
endorsed by the Environment Committee on 27 October 2020 and subsequently 
adopted by Council on 17 November 2020.  

2.2 The Action Plan for 2021-2022 included in Appendix 1 follows the adoption of the 
Strategy and looks to plan specific actions to be taken by the Council in the next two 

years.  

3. Action Plan  
 

3.1 The Action Plan responds to the priorities for action identified in the Strategy and 
existing opportunities such as Green Homes Grant funding from central Government 

to upgrade the energy efficiency of poorly insulated homes where the occupants are 
on low income.  

3.2 A number of staff workshops, and meetings with the steering group have been held 

in the course of developing the Action Plan.  
 

3.3 Three headline actions/projects which will be initiated in the short term as per the 
action plan are:  
 Delivery of the Green Homes Grant programmes 

 A proposed small grants scheme aimed at supporting community environmental 
projects 

 An annual summit and a regular forum to be established to engage partners 
 

 

3.4 Some of the projects or actions may have no direct cost to the Council, others may 
be met from existing budgets. Some will require funding from the approved 

environmental sustainability enabling budget in order to proceed.  

Page 13 Agenda Item 6



 

3.5 Where a project has a financial cost which is proposed to be met from the enabling 
budget, a decision report will be brought to a future meeting of the Environment 

Committee. 
 

3.6 Whilst the Action Plan presented has a number of actions under the theme ‘Natural 

Environment’, following the declaration of the biodiversity emergency on 30 
September 2020, it is intended that a dedicated biodiversity action plan will be 

developed.  

3.7 The development of the action plan responding to the biodiversity emergency will 
take place in consultation with stakeholders and partner organisations which have 

key roles in the protection and enhancement of biodiversity across the city. 

3.8 This action plan can be expected in the summer of 2021. Development of the plan 

will be overseen by the same cross-party steering group as for the Environmental 
Sustainability Strategy and Action Plan.  

4. Governance  
 
4.1 It has been recognised by the steering group that this Action Plan must be a live 

document, updated when, for example, new funding opportunities become available.  
 

4.2 Proposals for additional actions or other amendments to the Action Plan will be 
considered in detail by the steering group prior to a decision by the Environment 
Committee.  

 
4.3 Notwithstanding the above, where an opportunity arises requiring a response as a 

matter of urgency, delegated authority to the Chair and Vice Chair will allow a 
decision to be taken in a timely manner to ensure that opportunities are not missed.  
 

4.4 The Environment Committee will be regularly updated on the progress of the delivery 
of the Action Plan, with more frequent engagement of the steering group. To 

regularly review progress against the action plan is within the approved terms of 
reference for the steering group.  
 

5. Alternative Options Considered 
 

5.1 This Action Plan is required in order to plan delivery of the proposals and intentions 
outlined in the Environmental Sustainability Strategy. Without an Action Plan, 
allowing specific actions to be agreed, funding and resources to be allocated, the 

effective delivery of the Strategy would be compromised. 

5.2 Whilst there are other actions that could be considered, the proposed action plan is 

recommended as including the optimum actions that the Council can reasonably 
progress in the immediate future. 

6. Implications 

 
6.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 

Should a project have a financial cost which is proposed to be met from the enabling 
budget, or is otherwise outside of existing delegations, a decision report will be 
brought to a future Committee. 

 

Page 14



 

From the enabling budget of £100,000, £7,000 has been allocated to a specific 
project.  

 
6.2 Legal and Governance Implications 

Governance of delivery is included within the Action Plan itself. Reporting of progress 

will be made in quarterly updates to the Corporate Management Team, Corporate 
Leadership Team and the member steering group. Twice yearly progress reports will 

be presented to Environment Committee. Performance measures will be incorporated 
within performance reporting as appropriate.  

 

6.3 Risk Implications 
Risks associated with individual projects will be assessed as part of the full feasibility 

assessment and evaluation of the project, prior to project delivery starting.  
 

6.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 
The Action Plan delivers on the Council’s adopted Environmental Sustainability 
Strategy.  

 
6.5 Equality Implications 

No significant equalities implications arise from the content of this report. Equality 
impact assessments will be undertaken as appropriate to any projects or actions as 
they are brought forward. 

 
Actions which reduce householder energy usage will have a positive effect in 

reducing fuel poverty. 
 

6.6 Human Resources Implications 

No significant human resources implications arise at this stage. The action plan will 
be delivered within existing staff resources. 

 
6.7 Health and Safety Implications 

There are no significant health and safety implications from any of the proposals 

included within the action plan. 
 

6.8 Social, Environmental and Economic Implications 

The Action Plan maps out the first phase of delivery of the Council’s adopted 

Environmental Sustainability Strategy, which seeks to reduce carbon emissions from 

the Council as well as from Worcester homes, businesses and transport, and to bring 

environmental improvements across the city. Reduction of energy usage and 

enhancement of the environment will bring positive social, environmental and 

economic benefits. These will be assessed in more detail as projects and actions are 

brought forward. 

 
Ward(s):   ALL 
Contact Officer:  Ruth Corrall, Environmental Sustainability Officer, 

01905 722364, ruth.corrall@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: None 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Ref. 
no 

Title Project / work package description Financial Cost Funding Source Impact Ownership Start date End date 

  CARBON NEUTRAL CITY COUNCIL       

ESS-

1 

Low Carbon 

buildings 

Assess and produce a Decarbonisation Plan for all 
of the Council’s major buildings, taking account 

of planned maintenance where carbon reductions 
can be incorporated.  

Assessments to be 
sought via the 

Public Energy 
Efficiency 

Programme where 
possible; cost in the 
region of £1000 / 

building 

Can apply for 40% 

match for some 
projects from the 

Public Energy 
Efficiency 
Programme 

Emissions from City 
Council buildings 
account for around 

50% of the 
Council’s emissions, 

900tCO2e.  
 

Property 

Services 
Spring 2021 

Decarbonisati

on Plan for 
each major 

building in 
place by 
Spring 2022 

ESS-
2 

Low 
emission 

fleet 

Zero emission vehicle fleet options to be 

considered in our vehicle replacement strategy.  
Engage with suppliers of alternative zero 

emission vehicles and seek to be considered for 
trials.  

Electric alternatives 
are currently 

around double the 
non-electric price. 

Business cases 
needed to evaluate 

revenue savings 

Unknown 

Emissions from City 
Council fleet 

vehicles account for 
45% of our 
emissions. 

 

Environmental 
Operations 

Spring 2021 

Assessment 

and 
engagement 

by summer 
2021 

ESS-

3 

Low 
emission 

business 
travel 

Promote the refreshed Woo electric bikes project 
for employees. 

Ensure office video conferencing is facilitated 
across all sites.  
Consider LEV pool vehicle or taxi options for staff 

travel. 
 

Videoconferencing 
cost c£2-5k.  

LEV Pool car c£20-
30k.  

Internal 

Small amount of 

CO2 savings 
possible 
Demonstrates 

Leadership  

Environmental 
Sustainability 
Officer 

Spring 2021 Autumn 2021 

ESS-
4 

Low 

emission 
commuting 

Further promote the Cycle to Work scheme. 
Introduce a scheme incentivising staff to travel 

by foot or bike with charitable donations.  
Provide cycle storage and showering facilities at 

all workplaces.  
Assess the potential to introduce access to the 
Government’s salary sacrifice scheme for electric 

vehicles.  
 

No cost for salary 
sacrifice and Cycle 

to work. 
Cycle storage and 
facilities c£20-30k.  

Internal 

Calculated on the 

salary sacrifice 
scheme only: 5% of 

staff per year (10 
staff), average 10k 
mileage per year, 

replacing average 
petrol car = 3tCO2e 

each. Demonstrates 
leadership.  

HR Spring 2021 

Consideration 
of salary 

sacrifice and 
incentives 

scheme by 
summer 2021. 
Cycle facilities 

by spring 
2022.  

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



Ref. 
no 

Title Project / work package description Financial Cost Funding Source Impact Ownership Start date End date 

ESS-
5 

Embedding 
sustainabilit

y 

Embed the strategy and governance of the 
strategy within the Council. 

 Reporting on progress 
 Decision making 

 Staff training 
 SWDP review 

 

No cost apart from 

carbon literacy 
training  
c£5k   

Internal 

No directly 
measurable CO2 

saving, required for 
leadership and 
facilitating future 

change 

Corporate 
Leadership 

Team 

Spring 2021 
Autumn / 
winter 2021 

  CARBON NEUTRAL WORCESTER        

ESS-
6 

Domestic 
energy 
efficiency 

(private and 
social) 

Promote the Green Homes Grant Voucher 
Scheme and directly deliver the Green Homes 

Grant Local Authority Delivery project. 

£200,000 already 
received (Phase 

1A), further 
£921,800 secured 

(Phase 1B), 
additional £490,000 
to be received 

(Phase 2 allocation, 
no competition).   

Communication 
costs included 
within these 

amounts.  

Green Homes Grant 
Local Authority 

Delivery Scheme  

Estimated as: 

150tCO2e from 
GHG Phase 1A and 
1B; 60tCO2e from 

Phase 2; further 
50tCO2e from 

voucher uptake 

Strategic 
Housing 

December 
2020 

End of 
December 

2021 

ESS-
7 

Domestic 
energy 
efficiency 

(social 
housing) 

 
 
Provide technical support to encourage the City’s 

major Registered Housing Providers to submit a 
bid to the BEIS Social Housing Decarbonisation 

scheme 
 
. 

No financial cost to 

local authority 
expected; officer 

support 

Social Housing 
Decarbonisation 

Scheme 

Depending on 

project, deep 
retrofit could have 
reasonable impact 

(Average emissions 
per home 

3.89tCO2e, if 50 
homes have this 
reduced by 75% = 

145tCO2e) 

Strategic 
Housing 

Summer 2021 

Applications 

when scheme 
announced 

(by 2022) 

ESS-
8 

Active Travel 

Through the Towns Investment Fund, deliver 

improvements to cycle parking, active travel 
routes and introduce a public bike hire scheme.  

£12,850,000 

City Council, County 

Council and Towns 
Investment Fund 

(decision pending) 

Nationally, 54% of 

transport emissions 
are from passenger 

vehicles. Reducing 
this by 1% for 
Worcester equates 

to 468tCO2 

Corporate 

Leadership 
Team 

December 
2021 for 

inclusion in 
Towns Fund 
proposals 

2023-24 

P
age 18



Ref. 
no 

Title Project / work package description Financial Cost Funding Source Impact Ownership Start date End date 

ESS-
9 

Zero 
emission 

vehicle 
charging in 
car parks 

Deliver and promote the proposed St Martin's 
Gate rapid chargepoint hub.  

£400,000 
Accelerated Towns 
Investment Fund 

Difficult to quantify. 
All miles from 
charging on these 

chargepoints will be 
zero emission 

(green electricity).  
Demonstrates 
Leadership  

Property 
Services 

Sept 2020 Spring 2021 

ESS-
10 

Investigate 

options for 
heat 
networks 

Apply for funding from the Heat Networks 
Delivery Unit to commission the feasibility study 

into heat network opportunities.  

£35,000 (£7,000 

committed from 
Council enabling 
budget) 

Match from other 

partners and the 
Heat Networks 
Delivery Unit 

 
Savings hard to 

estimate - these will 
come from the 

study. 
 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

Officer 

Sept 2020 Summer 2021 

ESS-

11 

Support for 
community 

environment
al projects 

Develop and deliver a small grants scheme to 

support community projects that help to deliver 
the strategy.  

 
 

Suggest initial sum 
of £20,000 

allocated 

Internal (suggest 

enabling budget) 

Would be assessed 
on a project by 

project basis 

Community 

engagement 

Planning and 

preparation in 
Spring 2021, 

set up by the 
summer 

Grants to be 
administered 

by March 
2022 

  SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY       

ESS-

12 

Employment 
and Skills 
strategy 

Revise and update the Employment and Skills 
Strategy to include skills to support the low 

carbon economy. 
 

No immediate 
financial cost; 
officer time 

N/A 

 
Could provide a 

significant boost to 
local low carbon 
skills provision 

 
 

Economic 

Development 
Spring 2021 Winter 2021 

  NATURAL ENVIRONMENT       

ESS-

13 

City 
Biodiversity 

Action 
Programme 

 
Develop a City Biodiversity Action Programme 

with key partners and stakeholders.  
 

No immediate 
financial cost; 
officer time 

N/A 

Action Plan which is 
to be developed will 

have significant 
impact 

Environmental 

Sustainability 
Officer with 
Environmental 

Operations 

Spring 2021 Summer 2021 

ESS-
14 

Tree 
planting 

Plant 6,000 trees as part of the Urban Tree 

Challenge Project. 
Assess other opportunities to increase tree and 
hedgerow cover within the city. 

Urban Tree 
Challenge projects 
funded, no 

immediate cost to 
other actions 

Urban Tree 
Challenge 

Likely to be 
measurable but no 

estimate 

Environmental 
Operations 

January 2021 Spring 2021 

P
age 19



Ref. 
no 

Title Project / work package description Financial Cost Funding Source Impact Ownership Start date End date 

ESS-
15 

Sustainable 
planting 

 
Increase the use of sustainable planting and 
vegetation management on Council maintained 

land. 
 

Cost benefit 

analysis to be 
conducted where 

required 

Natural Networks or 
business case  

Likely to be 
measurable but no 

estimate 

Environmental 
Operations 

Spring 2021 Summer 2022 

ESS-
16 

Lyppard 
Ponds 

Special Area 
of 
Conservatio

n 

 

Seek to secure and enhance biodiversity within 
the Lyppard Ponds habitat . 

 
 

 Unknown 
Natural Networks 
grant funding 

Protect and 

enhance the 
important great 

crested newt 
population  

Environmental 
Operations 

Summer 2021 Winter 2022 

ESS-

17 

Biodiversity 

value of the 
city 

waterway 
corridors 

Explore opportunities for promoting 

improvements in biodiversity along the city’s 
waterways.  

 
 

 Unknown 
Natural Networks 

grant funding 

Would enhance a 
key wildlife corridor 

in the city 

Environmental 

Operations 
Autumn 2021 Winter 2022 

  PREPARING FOR CLIMATE CHANGE       

ESS-
18 

Natural 
Water 

Management 
on 

Barbourne 
Brook 

Work with partners to support further flood 
alleviation and biodiversity enhancements on 

Barbourne Brook.  
 
 

Officer time 

May be funding for 

projects identified 
through Natural 

Networks  

Support the 

protection of key 
habitats or assets  

Economic 

Development 
and Planning 

Summer 2021 
By end of 
2021 

ESS-
19 

Flood 
resilience 

Promote property flood protection and resilience 
improvement opportunities.  

Officer time Central Government  
Minimise the effects 
of property flooding 

Economic 

Development 
and Planning 

Spring 2021 Spring 2022 

  RESOURCE EFFICIENCY        

ESS-
20 

Waste 

hierarchy 
promotion 

campaign  

Run a campaign to promote “reduce, reuse, 
recycle” to householders. 

Promote and grow the Council’s commercial 
recycling service 
 

No immediate cost  N/A 

Emissions from 
waste account for 

significant 
proportion of City 

Council and County 
Council emissions 

Corporate 

Policy & 
Strategy 

(Comms) 

Summer 2021 By end 2021 

ESS-
21 

Single Use 

Plastics 
elimination 

Continue to deliver the Single Use Plastics Action 
Plan.  

No immediate cost  N/A 

Reduce the use of 
single use plastics 
and reduce plastics 

going into the river 

Environmental 

Sustainability 
Officer 

January 2020 2022 

  APPROACH: ENGAGEMENT       

ESS-
22 

Establish 
Forum for 
the 

Environment 

Establish the City Forum on the Environment  No cost; officer time Internal 

Engagement and 

momentum around 
partnership working 

Environmental 

Sustainability 
Officer 

February 2021 End 2021 

P
age 20



Ref. 
no 

Title Project / work package description Financial Cost Funding Source Impact Ownership Start date End date 

 

ESS-
23 

Annual 

summit for 
the 
Environment 

Hold first Annual Summit for Autumn 2021.  
 

Small cost from 
existing budget 

Internal 
Engagement and 
momentum around 

partnership working 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

Officer 

February 2021 End 2021 

P
age 21



Appendix 1 

Additional notes on the proposed actions selection 

ESS-1 Low Carbon buildings 

Possible projects for inclusion within the decarbonisation plans may be heat recovery for the Crematorium and insulation, 

lighting and heating control upgrades for the community centres. 

 

ESS-3 Low emission business travel 

Need to assess post Covid staff business travel requirements. 

 

ESS-4 Low emission commuting 

Need to assess post Covid staff business travel requirements. 

 

ESS-5 Embedding sustainability 
Within this area of work, a number of activities will achieve the outcome:  

 Embed reporting on progress within the Councils performance management structures.  
 Update report writing guidance.  

 Deliver carbon literacy training to staff.  
 Update procurement guidance to include sustainability within assessment criteria.  
 Include the strategy within the review of the SWDP 

 
ESS-6 Domestic energy efficiency (private and social) 

External wall insulation to 60 homes under Phase 1A and Phase 1B (funding secured). Phase 1B funding for 100 social rent 
homes to receive range of energy efficiency measures. Phase 2 (funding secured), number of homes and measures to be 
determined.  

 
ESS-7 Domestic energy efficiency (social housing) 

Within this project, we will work with registered housing providers on their domestic energy efficiency plans, with a particular 
view to supporting the preparation and submission of bids to relevant funding opportunities, such as the future Social 
Housing Decarbonisation Scheme (suggested by BEIS will come forward in 2021/22, expected to be looking for deep retrofit 

projects focused on a small number of homes in a neighbourhood). 
 

ESS-8 Active Travel 

This is subject to Town Fund approval and business case. 
 

ESS-10 Investigate options for heat networks 
This is subject to a successful partnership bid. 
 

ESS-11 Support for community environmental projects 
Support up to 20 community projects by offering grants (in the region of £500 - 1000) for projects to reduce carbon 

emissions (behaviour change campaign on energy use for example), improve resource efficiency in communities and homes, 
or improve biodiversity across the city. Aim to seed fund small projects to provide stepping stones to larger grant 
applications and to increase community involvement and engagement.  

 
ESS-12 Employment and Skills strategy 

Through this work, it will be ensured that the revised Employment and Skills Strategy takes note of the outcomes of the 
research commissioned by the Midlands Energy Hub into the low carbon economy, with particular regard to the skills 
requirements to deliver on Green Homes Grant opportunities. 

 
ESS-13 City Biodiversity Action Programme 

This action programme should enhance and safeguard biodiversity across the city, particularly along corridors and key 
infrastructure sites. Set up the ongoing working structures where required to enable strong and continued effective 

partnership working. 
 
ESS-14 Tree planting 

Delivery of the Urban Tree Challenge funded projects to result in over 6,000 additional trees to be planted in 2021 with 
events and communications promotion alongside. Discuss with community groups and organisations tree planting 

opportunities on community owned land; seek to provide trees or facilitate application to the Woodland Trust's free tree 
scheme.  
 

ESS-15 Sustainable planting 
Seek to extend current Warndon Villages wildflowers on road verges trial to cover significantly increased number of suitable 

locations. Start trial on arterial routes in conjunction with County Council, reducing the number of cuts and ensuring all cuts 
use 'cut and collect'. Work with partners to trial on other wildlife corridors. Work with members to ensure knowledge of what 
is happening on a ward level and suggest suitable future locations. 

 
ESS-16 Lyppard Ponds Special Area of Conservation 

Apply for Natural Networks review to provide recommendations and potential for grant funding. Seek funding and implement 
changes recommended. Improve signage and communications regarding this habitat. 
 

ESS-17 Biodiversity value of the city waterway corridors 
Meet with partners to discuss opportunities and funding requirements for biodiversity improvements of the city waterway 

corridors. Seek funding to match an application to Natural Networks for the canals recommendation report. Implement 
recommendations.  
 

ESS-18 Natural Water Management on Barbourne Brook 

Page 22



Liaise with partners to assess opportunities for flood alleviation projects, building on the current Natural Water Management 
project on Barbourne Brook. 

 
ESS-19 Flood resilience 

Support properties subject to flooding through signposting to services and delivery of relevant government funded grants 
 
ESS-20 Waste hierarchy promotion campaign 

Reflecting the Environment Bill, promotion of waste hierarchy amongst residents and businesses with a dedicated campaign 
to promote message of 'reduce, reuse, recycle'. Key focus will be on opportunities for reducing - such as reusables, reducing 

packaging by using own containers and utilising the repair cafe. Promote the existing commercial recycling offer.  
 
ESS-21 Single Use Plastics elimination 

Implement the remaining actions within the Single Use Plastics Action Plan and to ensure delivery on the commitments made 
in the two motions, ‘Single Use Plastic Free Council’ and ‘Sending a message in a bottle’.  

 
ESS-22 Establish Forum for the Environment 
Recruit membership and plan 2021 meetings. 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Proposed Committee Performance Scorecard 2021/22
	Environment Committee Scorecard 21-22 FINAL

	6 Action Plan for the First Phase of Delivery of the Environmental Sustainability Strategy
	Appendix 1 Action Plan v1.0


